
MEETING OF HARLOW COUNCIL 
 

7.30 pm on Thursday, 3 November, 2016 
 

In the Council Chamber - Civic Centre 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies for Absence   

 
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any items on the 

agenda. 
 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 4 - 16) 
 
 To agree the minutes of the meetings held on 28 July 2016 and 31 

August 2016. 
 
 

4. Communications from the Chairman   
 

 
5. Petitions from the Public   
 
 
6. Questions from the Public   
 
 
7. Questions from Councillors   

 
 

8. Motions from Councillors 
 
a) Housing and Planning Act 2016 
 

Proposed by Councillor Waida Forman (seconded by Councillor Mark 
Wilkinson): 

“This Council believes that The Housing and Planning Act, to be 
implemented from April 2017, is not in the interests of current tenants 
and those in housing need and will not address the affordable housing 
crisis nationally and in Harlow in that it will: 

1.  Limit tenancies to 10 years and will end the concept of ‘lifetime 

Public Document Pack



 

tenancies’ which allow families to settle and become part of a 
stable community; 

2.  Inequitably compel Councils to sell off their most ‘valuable’ 
homes, with the proceeds to be used to pay for the extension of 
the Right to Buy to housing association tenants; 

3.  Introduce a mandatory ‘Pay to Stay’ scheme for those in 
Council housing where the household income is above £31,000 
with the exception of those receiving Housing Benefit; 

4.  De-regulate the social housing sector, removing the need for 
housing associations to secure the Social Housing Regulator’s 
consent before disposing of land; and 

5.  Make Councils set up brownfield registers and give in principle 
planning permission to all land on this register, significantly 
increasing the likelihood of the creation of luxury developments 
as investment opportunities, in place of housing for ordinary 
working people.  

The Council condemns the introduction of compulsion for the Council 
to sell off the higher value housing, owned and paid for by the Council 
on behalf of the community it serves, whilst forcing it to give the 
money from these sales to the Government.  This represents a tax on 
Council tenants and the Council Tax payers of Harlow.    

The Council calls on the Government to allow a level playing field for 
the treatment of the sale of Council and housing association assets 
and, as with housing associations, allow the Council to keep ALL of its 
Right to Buy receipts for building new Council housing in Harlow.” 

b) Neighbourhood Planning Bill 
 
Proposed by Councillor Jon Clempner (seconded by Councillor Tony 
Durcan): 
 
“This Council opposes the tabled amendment to the Neighbourhood 
Planning Bill giving powers to the Secretary of State to invite a County 
Council to produce a Local Plan for a community of a District Council 
area should he/she believe that the District Council, as planning 
authority, is not making timely progress with its production.  It also 
opposes the imposition of any costs of doing so on District Councils. 

This Council believes that imposing a County Council created Local 
Plan on local communities is a challenge to local democracy and the 
community leadership role of District Councils. This Council also 
believes that the terminology used in the amendment referring to  

 



County Councils as ‘upper tier’ and to District Councils as ‘lower tier’ 
is divisive and creates the inaccurate perception that local democracy 
within communities is hierarchical. It believes that the use of this 
language is totally at variance with the Localism agenda of the 
Government, is contrary to the fact that Councils are sovereign and 
equal partners and is not consistent with the basis of the approach to 
Devolution where the equality of the partners to proposed Devolution 
Agreements has been a key element of those agreements. 

   
This Council resolves that: 

 
1.  The Chief Executive writes to the Minister of State for Housing 
and Planning and to all members of the Public Bill Committee of 
the House of Commons expressing this Council’s objections to 
the amendment and seeking: 

 
a.    The amendment be changed to take out all reference to 

County Councils and in its place there be inserted the 
Secretary of State having power to direct that planning 
authorities failing to produce a Local Plan by a defined date 
shall appoint, at their own expense, another District Council 
planning authority to take over the management of the Local 
Plan development process to ensure that the District Council 
is in a position to agree a Local Plan by an agreed date. 

 
b.    In all parts of the Bill reference to ‘upper tier’ and ‘lower tier’ 

be removed and be replaced by reference to District, 
Borough and City Councils, County Councils and Unitary 
Councils as appropriate to recognize the equality of the 
Councils. 

 
2.  The Chief Executive writes to the District Councils Network and 
all District, Borough and City Councils in Essex stating the 
Council’s objection to the amendment and inviting them to lodge 
similar objections with the Minister of State for Housing and 
Planning supporting (1) above. 

 
3.  The Leader of the Council writes to the Leader of Essex County 
Council seeking his support for (1) above.” 

 
 

9. References from Cabinet and Committees   
 
 Any reference arising from Committee or Cabinet meetings held after the 

publication of this Agenda will be circulated separately. 
 

 a) Referral from Cabinet - Annual Treasury Management Report 
2015/16  (Pages 17 - 39) 

 



  Cabinet recommended to Council that it approves the Annual 
Treasury Management Report for 2015/16 (Appendix A to the 
original report). 
 
 

10. Reports from Officers   
 

 
11. Minutes of Cabinet and Committee Meetings   
 
 These minutes remain draft until agreed at the next ordinary meeting of 

the relevant Committee or Cabinet. 
 

 a) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 19 July 2016 of Scrutiny Committee  
(Pages 40 - 42) 

 
 b) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 21 July 2016 of Cabinet  (Pages 43 

- 51) 
 

 c) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 6 September 2016 of Scrutiny 
Committee  (Pages 52 - 53) 

 
 d) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 7 September 2016 of Audit & 

Standards Committee  (Pages 54 - 58) 
 

 e) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 13 September 2016 of Licensing 
Committee  (Pages 59 - 61) 

 
 f) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 14 September 2016 of 

Development Management Committee  (Pages 62 - 65) 
 

 g) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 15 September 2016 of Cabinet  
(Pages 66 - 72) 

 
 

12. Matters of Urgent Business   
 



 

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL 

HELD ON 

 

28 July 2016 7.30  - 8.50 pm 
 

 

PRESENT 

 

COUNCILLORS 

 
OFFICERS 

Edna Stevens (Chairman) 
Sue Livings (Vice-Chair) 
 

Graham Branchett, Chief 
Operating Officer 
Brian Keane, Head of 
Governance 
Lisa Purse, Corporate and 
Governance Support Officer 
 

David Carter 
Joel Charles 
Jean Clark 
Jon Clempner 
Karen Clempner 
Mike Danvers 
Bob Davis 
Tony Durcan 
Waida Forman 
Michael Garnett 
Tony Hall 
 

Maggie Hulcoop 
Mark Ingall 
Dan Long 
Stefan Mullard 
Bill Pryor 
Danny Purton 
Lanie Shears 
Clive Souter 
John Strachan 
Emma Toal 
Mark Wilkinson 
 
 

15. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT  

 
The Chairman of the Council, Councillor Edna Stevens, spoke of the 
tragedies which had occurred since the last meeting of Full Council.  A 
minute’s silence was held to remember all those that had lost their lives. 
 
 

16. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies received from Councillors Ian Beckett, Simon Carter, Nick 
Churchill, Andrew Johnson, Eddie Johnson, Shona Johnson, Russell Perrin, 
Rod Truan and Phil Waite. 
 
 

17. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 
 

18. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 26 May 2016 are 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 

5

Agenda Item 3



 
19. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CHAIRMAN 

 
a) Events 

 
The Chair advised that she had attended 25 events since her election in 
May 2016 including the commemoration of the Somme which was both well 
organised and well attended.  The Chair also gave thanks to Councillor 
Andrew Johnson who had laid a wreath on behalf of the Council at the 
Thiepval memorial. 
 

b) Green Flags 
 
Officers were congratulated for securing two Green Flag Awards for the 
Town; one for Parndon Wood Nature Reserve for the eighth year in 
succession and one for Harlow Town Park for the first time.   
 

c) Councillor Dan Long 
 
The Chair also mentioned that Councillor Dan Long had administered first 
aid treatment to a young child with breathing difficulty who had since made a 
full recovery. 
 

d) Robert Halfon MP for Harlow 
 
Congratulations and best wishes were given to Robert and Vanda on their 
forthcoming wedding. 
 
 

20. PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 
None. 
 
 

21. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 
None. 
 
 

22. QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 
None. 
 
 

23. MOTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 

a) Diverse and Tolerant Society 
 
Proposed by Councillor Stefan Mullard, seconded by Councillor Emma Toal 
it was moved that: 

6



 
We are proud to live in a diverse and tolerant society and believe that 
racism, xenophobia and hate crimes have no place in our town. After 
Essex Police’s recent acknowledgement of a rise in hate crimes in 
Essex, Harlow Council: 
 
1.  Condemns racism, xenophobia and hate crimes unequivocally. 
 
2.  Re-confirms its commitment to work with the community and 
partner organisations in Harlow to promote Harlow as a safe, 
inclusive, secure and positive place to live, work and pursue leisure 
activities. 

 
The motion was carried unanimously. 
 

b) Devolution 
 
Proposed by Councillor Jon Clempner, seconded by Councillor Joel Charles 
it was moved that: 
 

This Council supports the principle of devolving powers and budgets 
from Whitehall to boost local growth. 
  
Devolving far-reaching powers over economic development, transport 
and regional infrastructure projects is right for our communities and 
for the country, but devolution should complement existing local 
government structures in Essex without additional bureaucracy. 
County and District Councils are best placed to understand the needs 
and aspirations of their local areas and are large enough to take a 
strategic view. 
  
Full Council is committed to working in partnership with all 
organisations with the willingness and ability to meet Harlow’s needs. 
  
This Council believes that any such Devolution Deal should 
recognise the unique characteristics and needs of the communities of 
the area to which it relates, and be tailored to the specific needs and 
unique characteristics of that area, in terms of priorities, funding, and 
governance structures. 
  
The Council believes that further devolution should not be 
constrained by a precondition that further local powers can only be 
granted if a Directly Elected Executive Mayor is elected. A Directly 
Elected Executive Mayor may be appropriate for metropolitan areas 
such as London and Manchester, but the Government must 
recognise the ability of County and District Councils to meet the 
challenge of taking on more powers. 
  

7



Granting additional powers and preparing Councils for further 
devolution should also be cost neutral to taxpayers and minimise 
bureaucracy to ensure the best deal for residents. 
  
This Council resolves to authorise the Leaders of all three political 
parties and the Chief Executive to continue dialogue with the 
Government, all local Councils in Essex and other partners to seek to 
secure a better Devolution Deal. The deal should seek to improve the 
investment in, and local control of housing, transport infrastructure, 
and skills as a priority. 

 
The motion was carried unanimously. 
 
 

24. MAIN DEBATE  

 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 17.3, the Chairman called on 
the Leader of the Council to introduce the debate on the work undertaken by 
the Council in the 2015/16 municipal year together with any highlights, 
pressures and potential issues for the coming year.  Each Group Leader 
was given the opportunity to respond to the debate.  It had been a 
challenging year as national austerity measures continued to have an 
impact on the resources available to the Council. Notwithstanding this, the 
Leader of the Council outlined the Council’s approach to meeting these 
challenges to provide services to the Town to the benefit of its residents. 
 
 

25. REFERENCES FROM CABINET AND COMMITTEES 
 

a) Referral from Licensing Committee - Temporary Driver Licensing 
Measures Pending Resolution of DBS Service Issues 
 
The Council received a report from the Licensing Committee which asked 
that it approves that, where an applicant has been unable to obtain a DBS 
disclosure certificate due only to delays in DBS service: 

 
(i) for a period of six months the Council issues temporary 

licences of one month’s duration, as set out at paragraph 11 of 
the original report to Licensing Committee; 

 
(ii) for a period of six months the Council issues temporary 

licences that will expire on the third anniversary of the issue of 
an existing DBS certificate, as set out at paragraph 12 of the 
original report to Licensing Committee; 

 
(iii) the effects of the Immigration Act 2016, as set out at 

paragraphs 5 and 13 of the original report to Licensing 
Committee, are noted. 

 
Proposed by Councillor Jon Clempner (seconded by Councillor Bill Pryor): 

8



 
RESOLVED that the above recommendations are approved. 

 
 

b) Referral from Cabinet - The Stow Neighbourhood Centre Design 
Framework Supplementary Planning Document 
 
The Council received a report from the Cabinet which asked that the Stow 
Neighbourhood Centre Design Framework Supplementary Planning 
Document be adopted. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Jon Clempner (seconded by Councillor Bill Pryor): 
 

RESOLVED that the Stow Neighbourhood Centre Design Framework 
Supplementary Planning Document is adopted. 

 
 

26. REPORTS FROM OFFICERS  

 
None. 
 
 

27. MINUTES OF CABINET AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meetings are noted. 
 

a) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 22 March 2016 of Licensing Committee 
 

b) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 31 March 2016 of Cabinet 
 

c) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 20 April 2016 of Development 
Management Committee 
 

d) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 8 June 2016 of Development 
Management Committee 
 

e) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 22 June 2016 of Audit & Standards 
Committee 
 

f) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 6 July 2016 of Development 
Management Committee 
 

g) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 12 July 2016 of Licensing Committee 
 

h) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 15 March 2016 of Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
 
 
 

9



 
28. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
The Chairman of the Council announced some dates for the diary including; 
VJ Day which would be commemorated on 15 August 2016; a Special 
Council meeting to be held on Wednesday 31 August 2016 specifically to 
discuss spatial options in regard to the Local Plan and issues arising around 
the proposed M11 Junction 7a; the Civic Service planned for the 11 
September 2016 and the Civic Dinner planned for the 21 October 2016. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL 

 

10



 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL  
HELD ON 

 
31 August 2016 7.30 pm - 10.35 pm 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
COUNCILLORS 
 

OFFICERS 

Edna Stevens (Chairman) 
Sue Livings (Vice-Chair) 
 

Malcolm Morley OBE, Chief 
Executive 
Brian Keane, Head of 
Governance 
Graeme Bloomer, Head of 
Place 
Jo Maskell, Governance 
Support Officer 
 

Ian Beckett 
David Carter 
Simon Carter 
Joel Charles 
Nick Churchill 
Jean Clark 
Jon Clempner 
Karen Clempner 
Mike Danvers 
Bob Davis 
Tony Durcan 
Waida Forman 
Michael Garnett 
Tony Hall 
Maggie Hulcoop 
 

Mark Ingall 
Andrew Johnson 
Eddie Johnson 
Shona Johnson 
Dan Long 
Mullard 
Bill Pryor 
Danny Purton 
Lanie Shears 
Clive Souter 
John Strachan 
Emma Toal 
Rod Truan 
Phil Waite 
Mark Wilkinson 
 

 
APOLOGIES 
 

 

Russell Perrin 
 

  
 

 
 
29. TRIBUTE  

 
The Council held a minute’s silence in tribute to Arkadiusz Jozwik who sadly 
died at The Stow on 27 August 2016. 
 
The Chairman invited the Harlow community to take part in a march, which 
was leaving from The Stow at 4pm on Saturday, 3 September 2016 to mark 
this tragic event. 
 

30. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 
 

11



31. M11 JUNCTION 7A  
 
Special Council received a report requesting Councillors to consider and 
agree a formal response to Essex County Council’s consultation on the 
proposed provision of a new junction (Junction 7A) on the M11 and the 
route from this junction into Harlow.  
 
Councillor Jon Clempner proposed the following motion, seconded by 
Councillor Andrew Johnson:          
 
“This Council recognises the importance of sustainable growth to support 
the economic success of Harlow and the evolution of the town and its 
community.  It also recognises that the provision of appropriate transport 
infrastructure is vital to support the growth of the town and its hinterland.  To 
this end, the Council resolves that it supports: 
 
(a) The provision of a new M11 Junction 7A located to the north of 

Harlow;  
 
(b) Improvements to the capacity of the existing Junction 7 on the M11; 
 
(c) The route from the new junction 7A, as shown at Appendix A, which 

recognises both the short and long term growth needs, including the 
ambition for a northern by-pass, on the basis of investment by Essex 
County Council to enable it to cope with the increased flows of traffic 
into and out of the town; 

 
(d) The re-allocation of monies currently allocated to improvements to 

M11 Junction 7 to enable the provision of M11 Junction 7A to be 
provided, with the caveat that, should M11 Junction7A not go ahead 
within the Local Plan time frame, the monies would revert to improve 
M11 Junction 7 improvements; 

 
(e) The scheduling of works being such that work for the provision of 

M11 Junction 7A are completed before major works of improvement 
to M11 Junction 7 are commenced.” 

 
 
Councillor Joel Charles, seconded by Councillor Mike Garnett proposed the 
following amendment: 
 
“This Council calls on Essex County Council to change its current approach 
and to:  
 
(a) Locate the proposed new M11 Junction 7A closer to Sheering with a 

dual carriageway northern by-pass connection to the A414 at 
Eastwick;  

 
(b) Work with Harlow Council and Hertfordshire County Council to build a 

business case for the northern by-pass (a) above; 

12



 
(c) Ensure that a decision and funding for a new M11 Junction 7A and 

northern by-pass are in place before major works to improve M11 
Junction 7A are commenced and in a timescale that doesn’t put the 
finding for M11 Junction 7 at risk.” 

 
The amendment was lost. 
 
 
Councillor Jon Clempner’s original motion was put to the Council 
unamended and the following vote was taken by roll call, to be recorded in 
the minutes:  
 

Name For Against 
Ian Beckett √  

David Carter √  

Simon Carter √  

Joel Charles  √ 
Nick Churchill √  

Jean Clark  √ 
Jon Clempner √  

Karen Clempner √  

Mike Danvers  √ 
Bob Davis   √ 
Tony Durcan √  

Waida Forman  √ 
Mike Garnett  √ 
Tony Hall √  

Maggie Hulcoop √  

Mark Ingall √  

Andrew Johnson √  

Eddie Johnson √  

Shona Johnson √  

Sue Livings  √ 
Dan Long  √ 
Stefan Mullard √  

Bill Pryor  √ 
Danny Purton  √ 
Lanie Shears  √ 
Clive Souter  √ 
John Strachan √  

Edna Stevens √  

Emma Toal √  

Rod Truan √  

Phil Waite √  

Mark Wilkinson  √ 
   

Result 19 13 

 

13



 
The motion was carried. 
 

32. MEETING HOUSING NEED IN THE STRATEGIC HOUSING 
MARKET AREA  
 
Duty to Co-operate discussions were progressing between the Council and 
neighbouring Epping Forest, Uttlesford and East Hertfordshire Councils to 
identify sites within the Strategic Housing Market Area (SHMA) to deliver a 
quota of houses up to 2033.   
 
Having reached an important stage in these Duty to Co-operate discussions, 
Special Council received a report requesting Councillors to consider and 
agree the principles which would underpin our approach to the next stages 
of these discussions.  
 
Councillor Danny Purton, seconded by Councillor Jon Clempner moved the 
following motion: 
 
“This Council: 
 
(a) Accepts the revised projections of 51,010 dwelling requirements for 

the SHMA; 
 
(b) supports the spatial option of strategic sites to the north and north 

east of Harlow in the administrative areas of east Hertfordshire and 
Epping Forest; 

 
(c) Supports the spatial option of strategic sites to the west and south of 

Harlow only where those sites represent sustainable development 
and address any transportation of infrastructure issues arising from 
them for the urban area of Harlow; 

 
Additionally, to support the above, Council: 
 
(d) Recognises the need to ensure that all proposed growth sites within 

Harlow need to be provided with the transport and highways 
infrastructure necessary to deal with the increased traffic they 
generate; 

 
(e) Supports improvements to M11 Junction 7 to address existing traffic 

issues and those arising from growth within and adjacent to Harlow;  
 
(f) Will seek to ensure the provision of sustainable transportation 

schemes to include high quality public transport routes both 
north/south and east/west linking all the development sites with 
Harlow Town Rail Station and the town centre; 

 
(g) Will seek to ensure the provision on all developments to include a 

variety and mix of tenures that will address the housing needs of 

14



existing as well as new residents in Harlow and encourage its 
neighbouring Councils to do the same; 

 
(h) Will seek to ensure that the Urban Design features of all 

developments within Harlow comply with the ‘Garden Town’ concept 
of Harlow and encourage neighbouring Councils to do the same for 
developments in their areas; 

 
(i) Seek to ensure that all developments will contribute towards the 

necessary provision of transportation, infrastructure and associated 
community facilities.” 

 
 
Councillor Stefan Mullard, seconded by Councillor Mike Danvers proposed 
the following amendment: 
 
“Substitute the following for (c) of the above motion: 
 
(c) Harlow Council  has reservations regarding spatial options to 

strategic sites to the west and south of Harlow.  Harlow Council will 
only consider such options once transportation and infrastructure 
issues are addressed and no other more favourable options are 
forthcoming”. 

 
 
As the mover and seconder of the original motion agreed to accept 
Councillor Mullard’s amendment, the substantive motion read as follows:   
 
“This Council: 
 
(a) Accepts the revised projections of 51,010 dwelling requirements for 

the SHMA; 
 
(b) supports the spatial option of strategic sites to the north and north 

east of Harlow in the administrative areas of east Hertfordshire and 
Epping Forest; 

 
(c) Harlow Council  has reservations regarding spatial options to 

strategic sites to the west and south of Harlow.  Harlow Council will 
only consider such options once transportation and infrastructure 
issues are addressed and no other more favourable options are 
forthcoming. 

 
Additionally, to support the above, Council: 
 
(d) Recognises the need to ensure that all proposed growth sites within 

Harlow need to be provided with the transport and highways 
infrastructure necessary to deal with the increased traffic they 
generate; 

 

15



(e) Supports improvements to M11 Junction 7 to address existing traffic 
issues and those arising from growth within and adjacent to Harlow; 

 
(f) Will seek to ensure the provision of sustainable transportation 

schemes to include high quality public transport routes both 
north/south and east/west linking all the development sites with 
Harlow Town Rail Station and the town centre; 

 
(g) Will seek to ensure the provision on all developments to include a 

variety and mix of tenures that will address the housing needs of 
existing as well as new residents in Harlow and encourage its 
neighbouring Councils to do the same; 

 
(h) Will seek to ensure that the Urban Design features of all 

developments within Harlow comply with the ‘Garden Town’ 
concept of Harlow and encourage neighbouring Councils to do the 
same for developments in their areas; 

 
(i) Seek to ensure that all developments will contribute towards the 

necessary provision of transportation, infrastructure and associated 
community facilities.” 

 
 
[It being 9.30pm, it was resolved to continue the meeting until the conclusion 
of this agenda item.]   
 
 
Councillor Andrew Johnson, seconded by Councillor Joel Charles proposed 
the following amendments to the substantive motion: 
 
“(a) At the end of paragraph (a) above, add ‘on the basis that the 

proportion of those dwellings to be provided for in Harlow will be the 
minimum to meet its growth needs’;  

 
(b) Delete ‘and north east’ and ‘and Epping Forest’ from (b) above; 
 
(c) Remove paragraph (c) above; 
 
(d) At (d) above, add ‘all of’ after ‘provided with’ and delete ‘transport and 

highways’; 
 
(e) At (h) above, substitute ‘Garden Town concept of Harlow’ with 

‘”Gibberd Principles” of Harlow and the Harlow Design Guide’”. 
 
The above amendments (a), (b) and (d) were lost, amendment (c) carried, 
whilst amendment (e) was partially agreed to read “Add ‘and the Harlow 
Design Guide’ after ‘concept of Harlow’.”  
 
 
The following substantive motion was voted on:   

16



“This Council: 
 
(a) Accepts the revised projections of 51,010 dwelling requirements for 

the SHMA; 
 
(b) supports the spatial option of strategic sites to the north and north 

east of Harlow in the administrative areas of east Hertfordshire and 
Epping Forest; 

 
Additionally, to support the above, Council: 
 
(c) Recognises the need to ensure that all proposed growth sites within 

Harlow need to be provided with the transport and highways 
infrastructure necessary to deal with the increased traffic they 
generate; 

 
(d) Supports improvements to M11 Junction 7 to address existing traffic 

issues and those arising from growth within and adjacent to Harlow; 
 
(e) Will seek to ensure the provision of sustainable transportation 

schemes to include high quality public transport routes both 
north/south and east/west linking all the development sites with 
Harlow Town Rail Station and the town centre; 

 
(f) Will seek to ensure the provision on all developments to include a 

variety and mix of tenures that will address the housing needs of 
existing as well as new residents in Harlow and encourage its 
neighbouring Councils to do the same; 

 
(g) Will seek to ensure that the Urban Design features of all 

developments within Harlow comply with the ‘Garden Town’ concept 
of Harlow and the Harlow Design Guide and encourage neighbouring 
Councils to do the same for developments in their areas; 

 
(h) Seek to ensure that all developments will contribute towards the 

necessary provision of transportation, infrastructure and associated 
community facilities.” 

 
The substantive motion was carried. 
 

33. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL 
 

17



REPORT TO: CABINET 
 

DATE: 15 SEPTEMBER 2016 
 

TITLE: ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
REPORT FOR 2015/16 
 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER): COUNCILLOR MIKE DANVERS 
 

LEAD OFFICER(S): 
 

SIMON FREEMAN, HEAD OF FINANCE 
(01279) 446228 
 

CONTRIBUTING 
OFFICER(S):  

LINDA GRINNELL, FINANCE MANAGER 
(01279) 446279 

 
This is not a Key Decision 
 
This decision is not subject to Call-in procedures for the following reasons: 
The decision stands as a recommendation to Council.  
 
This decision will affect no ward specifically.  
 
RECOMMENDED that: 
 
A Cabinet notes the annual Treasury Management Report for 2015/16 

(Appendix A), including that the Council operated within the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement during 2015/16, and that the report is 
recommended to Full Council for approval. 
 

B Cabinet notes the issues that the outcome of the EU Referendum is creating 
and their impact on the Council’s treasury management activities. 
 

 
REASON FOR DECISION 
 
A In complying with latest Codes of Practice, Full Council is required to receive 

an annual report on the prior year’s treasury management functions of the 
Council, which should also receive review by Cabinet in advance of its 
presentation to Full Council. 
 

B The Prudential Indicators are also required to be reported to Full Council. 
These are included within the annual treasury management report. 
 

 
 
 

18

Agenda Item 9a



BACKGROUND 
 
1.  Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local 

authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with 
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with 
those risks.” 
 

2.  On 10 February 2010, Full Council adopted the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA’s) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management (as revised November 2009) – “the Code”. 
 

3.  During 2015/16 the minimum reporting requirements were that Full Council 
should receive the following reports:  

- An annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Full Council, 5 
February 2015) 

- A mid-year treasury update report (Full Council, 17 December 2015) 
- An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity 

compared to the strategy (this report). 
 

4.  The annual report for 2015/16 has been produced in compliance with the 
Code and is set out in Appendix A to this report. The regulatory environment 
governing treasury management places onus on Councillors for the review 
and scrutiny of treasury management policies and activities.  This report is 
important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for 
treasury activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies 
previously approved by Councillors. 
 

ISSUES 

5.  As stewards of public funds, the Council will continue to take all practical 
steps to protect its investment portfolio.  In this respect, emphasis remains in 
this order of priority: security, liquidity and yield. 
 

6.  Security is defined as “reducing risk in order to protect the return of capital 
sums, particularly in relation to the Council’s investments”.  In practice this 
means placing investments with organisations which have a high quality 
credit rating, i.e. banks and other bodies which have a Fitch rating of A(-) and 
above.   
 

7.  Liquidity means “ensuring that investments are not committed for excessive 
time-periods in order to facilitate the Council’s cashflow requirements and to 
reflect the risk of not having immediate access to funds”.  Councils are 
discouraged from investing disproportionate sums of money for long periods 
of time at what seem attractive rates of return.   
 

19



8.  Yield is “obtaining a reasonable return on investments”.  Once again 2015/16 
has been a year of continued low interest rates and The Bank of England’s 
Base Rate remained at 0.5%.  The Council has attempted to gain the best 
yields without compromising security and liquidity. The average rate achieved 
was 0.608%. 
 

9.  The EU Referendum vote for “Brexit”, together with the recent announcement 
that the Bank of England has reduced the base rate to 0.25%, is impacting on 
the Council’s treasury management activities and adding further uncertainty 
to money market activities during 2016/17.  The market experts remain 
uncertain of the outcomes for long-term interest rates, exchange rates, 
budget cuts and bank defaults at the current time. 

 
10.  In response to this situation, and in order to provide reassurance to 

Councillors, the Council will proceed in its treasury activity with great caution 
and will continue to maintain particular emphasis on its key priority of 
investment security.  The Council will continue to operate within the remit of 
the approved Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and will use 
the lending list of approved institutions provided by the Council’s treasury 
advisors, Arlingclose.  This lending list is regularly updated and amended by 
Arlingclose in response to changes in the status and ratings of institutions and 
in response to forecasts and events occurring within the markets.  As a result 
the lending list has suffered reductions in the options available for investing 
the Council’s cashflow balances, as well as shortening of investment periods 
and investment limits, particularly following events and market concerns since 
the “Brexit” result. 
 

11.  The advice from Arlingclose is that the Council must aim towards a good 
investment spread as this is the best defence to protect the Council from a 
possible capital loss. As a result, the Council now holds investments in 
Certificates of Deposit (CDs), the CCLA (the Local Authority property fund), 
Money Market Funds, fixed and variable investments and the Treasury’s 
DMO.  Looking forwards, other investment vehicles will be considered that 
meet the security requirements of the TMSS whilst offering yet further 
investment opportunities and flexibility.   
 

12.  In order to further protect the Council’s investment options, it may also be 
necessary to review some of the investment parameters within the TMSS (for 
example investment limits) if there are indications that future market events 
may constrict the lending list beyond what is manageable within the Council’s 
treasury operations.  In such an eventuality, this will either be picked up by 
the routine mid-year review of the TMSS or would necessitate a further 
interim report to Cabinet and Council, possibly following any necessary 
decisions required to be made by the Head of Finance in conjunction with the 
Corporate Management Team and Portfolio Holder to enable the safe deposit 
of Council Investments.  Meanwhile, the treasury management activity 

20



remains controlled by and is forecast to operate within the approved TMSS 
for 2016/17.  

 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Place Services 

None specific. 

Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Regeneration 

 

Finance (Includes ICT) 
As contained in the report. 

Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  

 
Housing 

None specific. 

Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

 
Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 

None specific. 

Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing 

 
Governance (includes HR) 
None specific. 

Author: Brian Keane, Head of Governance 
 

 
Background Papers 
Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16 
 
 
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 
 
None 
 
 
 

21



1 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

HARLOW COUNCIL 
ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2015-16 

 
Introduction   

 
1. This report sets out the Council’s outturn position in accordance with 

recommended practice. 
 

2. It provides a review of external economic conditions impacting on the Council 
and focuses on the major issues affecting its borrowing and investments. 
 

3. The Council uses treasury management advisors to help its decision making, 
keeping officers up to date with economic and more specifically market 
developments and providing training and support.  Arlingclose Limited was 
appointed in December 2012 following a competitive process. 
 

4. Economic background and commentary is provided by Arlingclose throughout 
this Report. Throughout 2015-16 interest rates remained low with the Bank of 
England base rate at 0.5%.  This meant that interest earnings on investments 
remained low.  
 

5. As stewards of public finance, the Council will continue to take all practical 
steps to protect its investment portfolio.  In this respect, emphasis remains in 
this order of priority:  

 Security: reducing risk in order to protect the return on capital sums, 
particularly in relation to the Council’s investments. 

 Liquidity: ensuring that investments are not committed for excessive 
time-periods in order to facilitate the Council’s cashflow requirements 
and to reflect the risk of not having access to funds. 

 Yield: obtaining a reasonable return on Investments. 
 

6. The Council has in recent years run a portfolio fairly typical of similar Councils 

with investments in banks and building societies, through Money Market 

Funds and occasionally with other Councils.  Investments have generally 

been for periods of no more than six months.  This has enabled the Council to 

meet its treasury management priorities.  The Council’s approach to 

investment has always protected its capital, placing security above anything 

else.   

7. During 2015/16 the Council began to invest in certificates of deposit (CDs). 

These are investments issued by a bank or building society and are fixed 

deposits and give a guaranteed interest return. These differ from term 

deposits in that the Council is not obliged to hold the investment through to its 

full maturity and may realise the money by selling the CD into an active 

secondary market. CDs offer greater liquidity and access to counterparties 

which do not trade in term deposits.  

22



2 

 

8. In addition to CDs, the Council also invested £2 million in The Local 

Authorities’ Property Fund known as CCLA. This is an investment vehicle 

designed for local authorities with long term funds to invest in the commercial 

property sector and achieves both a rising income and capital growth.   

9. The Council’s treasury management activity is underpinned by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management Code 
(CIPFA’s TM Code), which requires it to produce annually Prudential 
Indicators and a Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) on likely 
financing and investment activity.  The Code also requires that Councillors 
are informed of treasury management activities at least twice a year (mid-year 
and at year end).  

 
10. The Council’s TMSS for 2015/16 was approved by Full Council on 5 February 

2015, and superseded by the TMSS 2016/17 on 4 February 2016.   
 
11. The Council invests substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to 

financial risks including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of 
changing interest rates.  The successful identification, monitoring and control 
of risk are therefore central to the Council’s treasury management strategy.  

 
External Context (supplied by Arlingclose) 

 
12. Growth, Inflation, Employment: The UK economy slowed in 2015 with GDP 

growth falling to 2.3% from a robust 3.0% the year before. CPI inflation 
hovered around 0.0% through 2015 with deflationary spells in April, 
September and October. The prolonged spell of low  inflation was attributed 
to the continued collapse in the price of oil from $67 a barrel in May 2015 to 
just under $28 a barrel in January 2016, the appreciation of sterling since 
2013 pushing down import prices and weaker than anticipated wage growth 
resulting in subdued unit labour costs. CPI picked up to 0.3% year/year in 
February, but this was still well below the Bank of England’s 2% inflation 
target. The labour market continued to improve through 2015 and in Q1 2016, 
the latest figures (Jan 2016) showing the employment rate at 74.1% (the 
highest rate since comparable records began in 1971) and the unemployment 
rate at a 12 year low of 5.1%. Wage growth has however remained modest at 
around 2.2% excluding bonuses, but after a long period of negative real wage 
growth (i.e. after inflation) real earnings were positive and growing at their 
fastest rate in eight years, boosting consumers’ spending power. 
  

13. Global influences: The slowdown in the Chinese economy became the 
largest threat to the South East Asian region, particularly on economies with a 
large trade dependency on China and also to prospects for global growth as a 
whole. The effect of the Chinese authorities’ intervention in their currency and 
equity markets was temporary and led to high market volatility as a 
consequence.  There were falls in prices of equities and risky assets and a 
widening in corporate credit spreads. As the global economy entered 2016 
there was high uncertainty about growth, the outcome of the US presidential 
election and the consequences of June’s referendum on whether the UK is to 
remain in the EU. Between February and March 2016 sterling had 

23



3 

 

depreciated by around 3%, a significant proportion of the decline reflecting 
the uncertainty surrounding the referendum result.  
 

14. UK Monetary Policy: The Bank of England’s MPC (Monetary Policy 
Committee) made no change to policy, maintaining the Bank Rate at 0.5% (in 
March it entered its eighth year at 0.5%) and asset purchases (Quantitative 
Easing) at £375bn. In its Inflation Reports and monthly monetary policy 
meeting minutes, the Bank was at pains to stress and reiterate that when 
interest rates do begin to rise they were expected to do so more gradually 
and to a lower level than in recent cycles. 
 

15. Improvement in household spending, business fixed investment, a strong 
housing sector and solid employment gains in the US allowed the Federal 
Reserve to raise rates in December 2015 for the first time in nine years to 
take the new Federal funds range to 0.25%-0.50%. Despite signalling four 
further rate hikes in 2016, the Fed chose not to increase rates further in Q1 
and markets pared back expectations to no more than two further hikes this 
year. 
 

16. However central bankers in the Eurozone, Switzerland, Sweden and Japan 
were forced to take policy rates into negative territory.  The European Central 
Bank also announced a range of measures to inject sustained economic 
recovery and boost domestic inflation which included an increase in asset 
purchases (Quantitative Easing).   
  

17. Market reaction: From June 2015 gilt yields were driven lower by the a 
weakening in Chinese growth, the knock-on effects of the fall in its stock 
market, the continuing fall in the price of oil and commodities and acceptance 
of diminishing effectiveness of central bankers’ unconventional policy actions.  
Added to this was the heightened uncertainty surrounding the outcome of the 
UK referendum on its continued membership of the EU as well as the US 
presidential elections which culminated in a significant volatility and in equities 
and corporate bond yields.   
 

18. 10-year gilt yields moved from 1.58% on 31/03/2015 to a high of 2.19% in 
June before falling back and ending the financial year at 1.42%.  The pattern 
for 20-year gilts was similar, the yield rose from 2.15% in March 2015 to a 
high of 2.71% in June before falling back to 2.14% in March 2016.  The FTSE 
All Share Index fell 7.3% from 3664 to 3395 and the MSCI World Index fell 
5.3% from 1741 to 1648 over the 12 months to 31 March 2016. 
 

19. It is still early days after the EU referendum vote outcome; however, in the 
period immediately following the result the financial markets have remained 
calmer than initially anticipated. Money markets have responded to the cut in 
the Bank of England base rate from 0.5% to 0.25% and the interest rates for 
short term investments (up to 12 months) have dropped accordingly. Clearly 
this will have an impact on the Council’s investment interest income and so 
the 2016/17 budget will need amending in the light of lower interest rates 
available in the financial market. 
 

24



4 

 

 
 

 
Local Context 

 
20. At 31 March 2016 the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital 

purposes as measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) was 
£226.894m, while usable reserves and working capital which are the 
underlying resources available for investment were £41.390m.   
 
 
Borrowing Strategy 

 
21. At 31 March 2016 the Council held £211.837m of loans as part of its 

strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes.   
 

22. The Council’s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an 
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and 
achieving cost certainty over the period for which funds are required, with 
flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s long-term plans change 
being a secondary objective.  

 
 
Borrowing Activity in 2015/16 

 

 

Balance on 
01/04/2015 
£m 

Maturing 
Debt 
£m 

Debt 
Prematurely 
Repaid £m 

New 
Borrowing 
£m 

Balance on 
31/03/2016  
£m 

Avg Rate % 

CFR        

Short Term Borrowing 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0 

Long Term Borrowing 211.837 0.000 0.000 0.000 211.837 3.31 

TOTAL BORROWING 211.837 0.000 0.000 0.000 211.837 3.31 

Other Long Term 
Liabilities 

0.110 (0.110) 0.000 0.000   

TOTAL EXTERNAL DEBT 211.947 (0.110) 0.000 0.000 211.837  

Increase/ (Decrease) 
in Borrowing £m 

    (0.110)  

 
 
 

Investment Activity  
 

23. The Council has held significant invested funds, representing income 
received in advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  During 
2015/16 the Council’s investment balances have ranged between £36.866m 
and £58.426m, finishing the financial year at £44.545m. The average 
balance of investments held during 2015/16 was £47.745m. The actual 
interest received of £0.343m exceeded the estimated return of £0.206m. 

25



5 

 

The team of officers who are responsible for the day to day treasury 
management  monitor the average rate of return on investments against the 
7 day LIBID rate  The average return received by the Council of 0.61% 
compared very favourably to the 7 day LIBID rate of 0.36%.l 

 
24. The following graph illustrates the yield for fixed term deposits and liquid 

investments (overnight deposits and Money Market Funds). 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

25. Overall Yield Performance is shown in the following graph below: 
 

26



6 

 

 
 

Investment Activity in 2015/16 
 

Investments 
 

Balance on 
01/04/2015 
£m 

Balance on 
31/03/2016 
£m 

Avg Rate 
/Yield on 
31/03/16 (%) 

Short term Investments (call accounts, deposits) 
Banks and Building Societies 
Local Authorities 

18.915 
3.000 

24.965 
0.000 

0.69 
0.00 

UK Government: 
DMADF 

5.400 0.000 0.00 

Money Market Funds 16.600 16.580 0.44 

Building societies without credit ratings 1.000 1.000 0.55 

CCLA 0.000 2.000 4.56 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 44.915 44.545 0.61 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Investments £m  (0.370)  

27



7 

 

 
26. The proportion of surplus cash invested in fixed term deposits and overnight 

deposits during 2015/16 is shown in the graph below: 
 
 

 
 

 
27. Security of capital has remained the Council’s main investment objective. 

This has been maintained by following the Council’s counterparty policy as 
set out in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2015/16.  

 
28. Counterparty credit quality was assessed and monitored with reference to 

credit ratings (the Council’s minimum long-term counterparty rating is A- 
across rating agencies Fitch, S&P and Moody’s); credit default swap prices, 
financial statements, information on potential government support and 
reports in the quality financial press.  

   
Counterparty Update 

 
29. The transposition of two European Union directives into UK legislation 

placed the burden of rescuing failing EU banks disproportionately onto 
unsecured institutional investors which include local authorities and pension 
funds. During the year, all three credit ratings agencies reviewed their 
ratings to reflect the loss of government support for most financial 
institutions and the potential for loss given default as a result of new bail-in 
regimes in many countries. Despite reductions in government support many 
institutions saw upgrades due to an improvement in their underlying strength 
and an assessment that that the level of loss given default is low. 

 

28



8 

 

30. Fitch reviewed the credit ratings of multiple institutions in May. Most UK 
banks had their support rating revised from 1 (denoting an extremely high 
probability of support) to 5 (denoting external support cannot be relied 
upon). This resulted in the downgrade of the long-term ratings of  the Royal 
Bank of Scotland (RBS), Deutsche Bank, Bank Nederlandse Gemeeten and 
ING. JP Morgan Chase and the Lloyds Banking Group however both 
received one notch upgrades. 
 

31. Moody’s concluded its review in June and upgraded the long-term ratings of 
Close Brothers, Standard Chartered Bank, ING Bank, Goldman Sachs 
International, HSBC, RBS, Coventry Building Society, Leeds Building 
Society, Nationwide Building Society, Svenska Handelsbanken and 
Landesbank Hessen-Thuringen. 
 

32. S&P reviewed UK and German banks in June, downgrading the long-term 
ratings of Barclays, RBS and Deutsche Bank.  S&P also revised the outlook 
of the UK as a whole to negative from stable, citing concerns around the 
referendum on EU membership and its effect on the economy.  
 

33. National Australia Bank (NAB) announced its plans to divest Clydesdale 
Bank, its UK subsidiary. NAB listed Clydesdale on the London Stock 
Exchange and transferred ownership to NAB’s shareholders. Following the 
demerger, Fitch and Moody’s downgraded the long and short-term ratings of 
the bank. 
 

34. At the end of July 2015, Arlingclose advised an extension of recommended 
durations for unsecured investments in certain UK and European institutions 
following improvements in the global economic situation and the receding 
threat of another Eurozone crisis. A similar extension was advised for some 
non-European banks in September, with the Danish Danske Bank being 
added as a new recommended counterparty and certain non-rated UK 
building societies also being extended.  
 

35. In December the Bank of England released the results of its latest stress 
tests on the seven largest UK banks and building societies which showed 
that the Royal Bank of Scotland and Standard Chartered Bank were the 
weakest performers. However, the regulator did not require either bank to 
submit revised capital plans, since both firms had already improved their 
ratios over the year. 
 

36. In January 2016, Arlingclose supplemented its existing investment advice 
with a counterparty list of high quality bond issuers, including recommended 
cash and duration limits. The Council did not make use of these long-term 
investment options during 2015/16 but will be considering utilising bonds 
during 2016/17. 
 

37. The first quarter of 2016 was characterised by financial market volatility and 
a weakening outlook for global economic growth. In March 2016, following 
the publication of many banks’ 2015 full-year results, Arlingclose advised the 
suspension of Deutsche Bank and Standard Chartered Bank from the 

29



9 

 

counterparty list for unsecured investments. Both banks recorded large 
losses and despite improving capital adequacy this will call 2016 
performance into question, especially if market volatility continues. 
Arlingclose will continue to monitor both banks. 
 

38. The end of bank bail-outs, the introduction of bail-ins, and the preference 
being given to large numbers of depositors other than local authorities 
means that the risks of making unsecured deposits continues to be elevated 
relative to other investment options.   
 
Compliance 

 
39. The Council confirms compliance with its Prudential Indicators for 2015/16, 

which were set in February 2015 as part of the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement.   

 
Investment Training 
 

40. The Council has a small team of officers who are trained in treasury 
management activity. The organisation is not sufficiently large to have 
dedicated experts so it places reliance on support from its treasury 
management advisors.  
 

41. The team of officers comprise those who provide strategic leadership with 
authorisation powers, and staff who are responsible for day-to-day cashflow 
management and dealing. On the job training and attendance at the treasury 
advisors seminars occurred during the year. 

 

30



10 

 

  
Annex A 
Prudential Indicators 2015/16 

 
The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to CIPFA’s 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) 
when determining how much money it can afford to borrow. The objectives of the 
Prudential Code are to ensure, within a clear framework, that the capital investment 
plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that treasury 
management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional practice. 
To demonstrate that the Council has fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code 
sets out the following indicators that must be set and monitored each year. 

 
(a) Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 
The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s underlying need 
to borrow for a capital purpose.  

 
Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 

31.03.16 
Approved 
£m 

31.03.16 
Revised 
£m 

31.03.16 
Actual 
£m 

31.03.17 
Estimate 
£m 

31.03.18 
Estimate 
£m 

31.03.19 
Estimate 
£m 

General 
Fund 

33.362 40.807 39.525 43.592 44.336 45.358 

HRA 155.248 187.370 187.370 187.370 187.370 187.370 

Total CFR 188.610 228.177 226.895 230.962 231.706 232.728 

 

 
Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement: In order to ensure that over 
the medium term debt will only be for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure 
that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing 
requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital 
financing requirement for the current and next two financial years. This is a key 
indicator of prudence. 

 

Debt 
31.03.16 
Approved 
£m 

31.03.16 
Revised 
£m 

31.03.16 
Actual 
£m 

31.03.17 
Estimate 
£m 

31.03.18 
Estimate 
£m 

Borrowing 211.837 211.837 211.837 211.837 211.837 

Finance leases 0.194 0.110 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Total Debt 212.031 211.947 211.837 211.837 211.837 

 
Total debt is expected to remain below the CFR during the forecast period. 

 
The actual debt levels are monitored against the Operational Boundary and 
Authorised Limit for External Debt, below.  
 
 
 
 

31



11 

 

 
(b) Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt 
 
Operational Boundary for External Debt: The operational boundary is based on the 
Council’s estimate of most likely, i.e. prudent, but not worst case scenario for 
external debt.  

 

Operational Boundary 
2015/16 

£m 
2016/17 

£m 
2017/18 

£m 
2018/19 

£m 

Borrowing 250.000 252.000 252.000 253.000 

Other long-term liabilities 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500 

Total Debt 251.500 253.500 253.500 254.500 

 
Authorised Limit for External Debt: The authorised limit is the affordable borrowing 
limit determined in compliance with the Local Government Act 2003.  It is the 
maximum amount of debt that the Council can legally owe.  The authorised limit 
provides headroom over and above the operational boundary for unusual cash 
movements. 

 

Authorised Limit 
2015/16 
£m 

2016/17 
£m 

2017/18  
£m 

2018/17 
£m 

Borrowing 260.000 260.000 260.000 265.000 

Other long-term liabilities 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 

Total Debt 265.000 265.000 265.000 270.000 

 
(c) Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream:  
 
This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of 
existing and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the 
revenue budget required to meet financing costs, net of investment income. 

 

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
2015/15 
Estimate 
% 

2015/16 
Revised 
% 

2015/16 
Actual 
% 

2016/17 
Estimate 
% 

2017/18 
Estimate 
% 

General Fund 3.47 3.94 3.94 2.76 3.55 

HRA 12.35 11.56 10.56 11.65 11.68 

 
(d) Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions:  
 
This is an indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital investment 
decisions on Council Tax and housing rent levels. The incremental impact is the 
difference between the total revenue budget requirement of the current approved 
capital programme and the revenue budget requirement arising from the capital 
programme proposed. 

 
 
 

32



12 

 

Incremental Impact of Capital Investment 
Decisions 

2015/16 
Estimate 
£ 

2015/16 
Revised 
£ 

2015/16 
Actual 
£ 

2016/17 
Estimate 
£ 

2017/18 
Estimate 
£ 

General Fund - increase in annual Band D 
Council Tax 

54.99 34.38 36.01 37.48 18.63 

HRA - increase in average weekly rents 24.50 21.22 12.98 21.35 10.17 

 
(e) Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code:  
 
Full Council approved the adoption of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice’ at 
its meeting on 10 February 2010. 

33



13 

 

Annex I 
Glossary of Terms and Definitions 
  
Bank Rate:  
The term ‘Bank Rate’ is ‘the official Bank Rate paid on commercial bank reserves’, 
i.e. reserves placed by commercial banks with the Bank of England as part of the 
Bank’s operations to reduce volatility in short term interest rates in the money 
markets.  Previously referred to as “repo rate” this term has been replaced as a 
result of the change in terminology used by the Bank of England as from May 2006   
 
Base Rate:  
The term Base Rate refers to the rate which is set by each high street bank; it is the 
key foundational rate on which they each base all their various lending rates to 
customers. It is normally set at the same rate as the Bank Rate (q.v.) and changes 
in line with, and very soon after changes in Bank Rate. 
 
BRRD: ‘Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive’ 
 
CD:  see ‘Certificate of deposit'. 
 
CDS: see ‘Credit Default Swaps’ 
 
CFR:  see ‘Capital Financing Requirement’  
 
CP: see ‘Commercial paper'. 
 
CRA:  see ‘Credit Rating Agency’. 
 
Call Account: ‘Call account' is a bank deposit where funds can be withdrawn at 
any time. 
 
Callable Deposit 
Placing a deposit with a bank or building society at a set rate for a set amount of 
time. However, the borrower has the right to repay the funds on pre agreed dates 
before maturity. This decision is based upon how market rates have moved since 
the deal was agreed. If rates have fallen, the likelihood of the deposit being repaid 
rises, as cheaper money can be found by the borrower.  
 
Capital Financing Requirement 
The Capital Financing Requirement reflects the Council’s underlying need to 
borrow for capital purposes.  Thus, if new capital expenditure is incurred and not 
financed from sources other than by borrowing, the CFR will increase by the 
amount of that expenditure.  Borrowing, up to the value of the CFR, may be either 
from internal cash balances or externally, such as from the Public Works Loan 
Board (q.v.).   
 
Certificate of Deposit  
A certificate of deposit is an unsecured investment issued by a bank or building 
society which is a fixed deposit, giving a guaranteed interest return.  These differ 
from term deposits in that the lender is not obliged to hold the investment through 

34



14 

 

to maturity and may realise the cash by selling the CD into an active secondary 
market.   This may be useful in instances where the counterparty receives a 
downgraded credit rating, or the investor encounters an unexpected cashflow 
issue.  CDs are obtained through specialist brokers who deal through the primary 
and secondary market.  CDs offer liquidity and greater access to counterparties 
who do not trade in term deposits. 
 
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice 
This represents official practitioners’ guidance, which is produced by CIPFA (the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy).  The government expects 
Councils and other public service authorities to adopt and comply with the code.  
The recommendations made in the Code provide a basis for all these public service 
organisations to create clear treasury management objectives and to structure and 
maintain sound treasury management policies and practices. 
 
Commercial Paper 
Short-term obligations with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days issued by banks, 
corporations and other borrowers. Such instruments are unsecured and usually 
discounted, although some may be interest bearing. 
 
Corporate Bond 
Strictly speaking, corporate bonds are those issued by companies. However, the 
term is used to cover all bonds other than those issued by governments in their 
own currencies and includes issues by companies, supranational organisations and 
government agencies 
 
Counterparty 
A counterparty is a party with which a transaction is done. 
 
CPI:  Consumer Prices Index 
 
Credit Default Swaps 
A CDS is a contract between two counterparties in which the buyer of the contract 
makes quarterly payments to the seller of the contract in exchange for a payoff if 
there is a credit event (e.g. default) of the reference entity (i.e. the third party on 
whom the contract is based).  The contract essentially provides a means of 
insurance to the buyer of the CDS against default by a borrower.  The “spread” 
(effectively the premium paid by the CDS buyer) provides an indication of the 
perceived risk of a default occurring. 
 
Credit Rating 
A credit rating is an estimate of the quality of a debt from the lender viewpoint in 
terms of the likelihood of interest and capital not being paid and of the extent to 
which the lender is protected in the event of default. 
 
An individual, a firm or a government with a good credit rating can borrow money 
from financial institutions more easily and cheaply than those who have a bad 
credit rating. 
 
Credit Ratings are evaluated by Credit Rating agencies (q.v.). 

35



15 

 

 
Credit rating agency 
‘Credit rating agency', or ‘rating agency', or CRA, is a firm that issues opinions on 
companies' ability to pay back their bonds.  These opinions are often abbreviated 
on an alphanumeric scale ranging from AAA to C (or equivalent).  The three CRAs 
used by the Council are Fitch, Moody's and Standard and Poor's. 
 
DCLG:  Department for Communities and Local Government 
 
DMADF:  see ‘Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility’ 
 
DMO:  see ‘Debt Management Office’ 
 
Dealing 
Is the process of carrying out transactions with a counterparty (q.v.), including 
agreeing the terms of an investment.  This is usually conducted through a broker. 
 
Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility 
Deposit Account offered by the Debt Management Office (q.v.), guaranteed by the 
UK government.   
 
Debt Management Office 
The Debt Management Office (DMO) is an executive agency of HM Treasury 
responsible for carrying out the government's debt management policy and 
managing the aggregate cash needs of the Exchequer. It is also responsible for 
lending to local authorities and managing certain public sector funds. 
 
Derivative 
A contract whose value is based on the performance of an underlying financial 
asset, index or other investment. e.g. an option is a derivative because its value 
changes in relation to the performance of an underlying stock. 
 
ECB:  European Central Bank 
 
Equity 
A share in a company with limited liability. It generally enables the holder to share 
in the profitability of the company through dividend payments and capital gain.  
 
EU:  European Union  
 
Fed:  The Federal Reserve (US) 
 
FLS:  Funding for Lending Scheme 
 
Floating Rate Notes 
Bonds on which the rate of interest is established periodically with reference to 
short-term interest rates 
 
 
 

36



16 

 

Forward Deal 
The act of agreeing today to deposit funds with an institution for an agreed time 
limit, on an agreed future date, at an agreed rate.  
 
Forward Deposits:  see ‘forward deal’  
 
Fund Manager 
The individual responsible for making decisions related to any portfolio of 
investments in accordance with the stated goals of the fund. 
 
 
GDP: Gross Domestic Product 
 
Gilt 
Registered British government securities giving the investor an absolute 
commitment from the government to honour the debt that those securities 
represent. 
 
Gilt Funds 
Pooled fund investing in bonds guaranteed by the UK government.  
 
HRA:  Housing Revenue Account 
 
HRACFR:  Housing Revenue Account Capital Financing Requirement 
 
iTraxx benchmark 
A group of international credit derivative indexes that are monitored by the 
International Index Company (IIC). The credit derivatives market that iTraxx 
provides allows parties to transfer the risk and return of underlying assets from one 
party to another without actually transferring the assets. iTraxx indexes cover credit 
derivatives markets in Europe, Asia and Australia. 
 
Lender Option Borrower Option 
‘Lender Option Borrower Option’ (LOBO) is a floating rate instrument which allows 
the lender to designate an adjustment rate at periodic reset dates and lets the 
borrower decide whether to pay the rate or redeem the bond. 
 
Liquidity 
Liquidity refers to an asset that can be turned into cash or the ability to quickly sell 
or buy an asset 
 
LIBID: see ‘London Interbank Bid Rate’ 
 
LIBOR: see ‘London Interbank Offer Rate’  
 
LOBO:  see ‘Lender Option Borrower Option’ 
 
London Interbank Bid Rate 
The ‘London Interbank Bid Rate’ (LIBID) is the rate of interest at which first-class 
banks in London will bid for deposit funds. Often used as a benchmark for deposit 

37



17 

 

rates. LIBID is not fixed in the same way as LIBOR (q.v.), but is typically one-
sixteenth to one-eighth of a per cent below LIBOR.  
 
London Interbank Offer Rate 
‘London Interbank Offer Rate' (LIBOR) is the interest rate which banks pay when 
lending to each other.  It is calculated at a specified time each day and based on 
what it would cost a panel of banks to borrow funds for various periods of time and 
in various currencies.  It then creates an average of the individual banks’ figures. 
 
 
MMF:  see ‘Money Market Fund’  
 
Money Market Fund 
Money Market Funds are mutual funds that invest in short-term debt instruments.  
They provide the benefits of pooled investment, as investors can participate in a 
more diverse and high-quality portfolio than they otherwise could individually.  Like 
other mutual funds, each investor who invests in a money market fund is 
considered a shareholder of the investment pool, a part owner of the fund.  Money 
market funds are actively managed within rigid and transparent guidelines to offer 
safety of principal, liquidity and competitive sector-related returns.  It is very similar 
to a unit trust, however, in a MMF equities are replaced by cash instruments. 
Returns are typically around 1 month LIBID (q.v.), and the average maturity is 
generally below 60 days.  
 
MPC:  Monetary Policy Committee 
 
MRP:  Minimum Revenue Provision, for the repayment of debt. 
 
 
Open Ended Investment Companies (OEIC) 
Investment funds that partly resemble an investment trust and partly a unit trust.  
Like investment trusts, they issue shares on the London Stock Exchange and 
invest money raised from shareholders in other companies. The term open-ended 
means that when demand for the shares rises the fund manager just issues more 
shares, instead of there being a rise in the share price.  The price of OEIC shares 
is determined by the value of the underlying assets of the fund.  
 
Other Bond Funds 
Pooled funds investing in a wide range of bonds.  
 
 
PWLB: see ‘Public Works Loan Board’  
 
Programme of Development 
The balance of Programme of Development funding (POD) represents monies 
received from Central Government for regeneration in the east of England, and is 
held by the Council on behalf of a Partnership comprising local councils and 
partners from the third and private sectors.  The funding was received after a series 
of successful bids by the Partnership. 
 

38



18 

 

Public Works Loan Board 
The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) is a UK Government statutory body whose 
function is to lend money from the National Loans Fund to Councils and other 
public bodies and to collect the repayments. 
 
 
Rating Agency:  see ‘Credit Rating Agency’ 
 
Repo:  see ‘Repurchase Agreement’ 
 
Repurchase Agreement 
‘Repurchase agreement', or repo, is a contract where the seller of certain securities 
agrees to buy them back from the purchaser at a specified time for an agreed 
price.  
 
Reverse Gilt Repo 
This is a transaction as seen from the point of view of the party which is buying the 
gilts. In this case, one party buys gilts from the other and, at the same time and as 
part of the same transaction, commits to resell equivalent gilts on a specified future 
date, or at call, at a specified price. 
 
 
Sovereign Issues (Ex UK Gilts) 
Bonds issued or guaranteed by nation states, but excluding UK government bonds. 
 
Supranational Bonds 
Bonds issued by supranational bodies, e.g. European Investment Bank. These 
bonds – now known as Multilateral Development Bank bonds – are generally AAA 
rated and behave similarly to gilts, but pay a higher yield (“spread”) given their 
relative illiquidity when compared with gilts. 
 
 
T-bills: see ‘Treasury Bills’. 
 
Term Deposit 
(or 'Time deposit') is a generic term for a bank deposit where funds cannot be 
withdrawn for a fixed period of time.  The lender receives a fixed rate of interest.  
These are unsecured investments and place the lender at risk of bail-in should this 
occur during the term of the investment. 
 
Time Deposit:  see ‘Term Deposit’  
 
Treasury Bills 
Treasury bills are a AAA/AA+ rated, short-dated form of Government debt, issued 
by the Debt Management Office (q.v.), via a weekly tender, on a Friday.  Lenders 
would use the services of a specialist broker to access the market.  These usually 
have a maturity of one, three or six months and provide a return to the investor by 
virtue of being issued at a discount to their final redemption value.  There is also an 
active secondary market for T-bills which means that lending may be available for a 
range of dates.  Interest rates tend to be higher than the DMADF (q.v.).  

39



19 

 

 
Treasury Management Strategy 
This is the Council’s overall policy and framework by which it will carry out that 
policy in relation to its borrowing and investment needs in the coming financial 
year. 
 
Treasury Management Policy Statement 
This is the Council’s statement of intention in respect of its treasury management.  
It is prescribed by the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice (q.v.). 
 
 
Variable Rate Asset Value 
‘Variable Rate Asset Value’ (VNAV) occurs where the net asset value, or principal 
sum, invested may change depending on trading conditions.  The value is 
calculated at the end of the business day based on the value of investments less 
any liabilities divided by the number of shares outstanding.  With investments 
carrying this attribute, the capital sum invested may not be equal to the capital sum 
repaid. 
 
VNAV:  see ‘Variable Net Asset Value’. 
 
 
Weighted Average Maturity 
‘Weighted average maturity', or WAM, is used to measure interest rate risk.  WAM 
is calculated by taking the maturity of the underlying money market instruments 
held by the fund, weighted according to the relative holdings per instrument. 

40



 

MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 

 

19 July 2016 7.30  - 8.16 pm 
 

 

PRESENT 

 

Committee Members 
Councillor David Carter (Vice-Chair, in the Chair) 
Councillor Simon Carter 
Councillor Joel Charles 
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop 
Councillor Stefan Mullard 
Councillor Lanie Shears 

 
 

Officers 

Janet Jackson – Corporate and Governance Support Team Leader 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Bob Davis. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 

3. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 15 March 2016 
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

 
4. MATTERS ARISING  

 
Councillor David Carter made reference to Minute number 56 – Review of 
Pay Day Loans, Final Report from the February meeting of the Committee 
and requested that Harlow Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) be invited to a 
future meeting to talk about the impact of Pay Day Loans on the residents 
in Harlow.    
 

5. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  

 
None. 
 

6. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 
None. 
 

41

Agenda Item 11a



7. WORK PLAN  

 
The Committee received a report proposing a work plan for 2016/17. 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
A. That the committee identified items and agreed the work plan for 

the 2016/17 municipal year. 
 

B. Agreed to receive the next report on the review of Community 
Engagement at the October 2016 meeting. 

 
C. Agreed to receive a report on the review of Sheltered Housing 

(Phase 2) at the November 2016 meeting. 
 
D. That a scoping report for the following item to be received at the 

September 2016 meeting of the Committee: 
 

 (iii) Review of HTS Property & Environment) Ltd. 
 
E. That scoping reports for the following items to be received at the 

October 2016 meeting of the Committee: 
 
(i) Review of Transport links in and out of Harlow. 
(ii) Review of Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 

F. That a scoping report for the following item to be received at the 
November 2016 meeting of the Committee: 

 
(i) Civic Pride and Education. 

 
G. The following topics be added to the work plan, but with dates of 

    consideration not allocated, so the Committee may choose to 
    revisit them at a later date: 
 

(i) Review of Harlow Sports Trust  
(ii) Review Road Safety and improving the safety of young 

drivers. 
 

8. RESPONSES OF THE CABINET TO REPORTS OF THE SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

a) Response of the Cabinet to the Review of the Harlow Youth Council 
 

RESOLVED that the Cabinet’s response to the recommendations 
from this review is noted. 

 
9. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  

 
None. 

42



 
10. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

43



 

MINUTES OF THE CABINET 

HELD ON 

 

21 July 2016 7.30  - 9.13 pm 
 

PRESENT 

 

Cabinet Members 
Councillor Jon Clempner, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Mike Danvers, Portfolio Holder for Resources 
Councillor Tony Durcan, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration & Enterprise 
Councillor Waida Forman, Portfolio Holder for Governance 
Councillor Danny Purton, Portfolio Holder for Environment 
 
Additional Attendees 

Councillor Lanie Shears 
 

Other Councillors Officers 

Councillor David Carter 
Councillor Simon Carter 
Councillor Joel Charles 
Councillor Russell Perrin 
Councillor Clive Souter 
  

Malcolm Morley OBE, Chief 
Executive 
Brian Keane, Head of Governance 
Jane Greer, Head of Community 
Wellbeing 
Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance 
Lisa Purse, Corporate and 
Governance Support Officer 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Mark Ingall, John Strachan, 
Emma Toal and Mark Wilkinson. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 

3. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 31 March 2016 
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Leader. 

 
4. MATTERS ARISING  

 
None. 
 

5. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 
None. 

Public Document Pack

44

Agenda Item 11b



 
6. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 
None. 
 

7. PETITIONS  
 
None. 
 

8. FORWARD PLAN  
 

RESOLVED that the Forward Plan is noted. 
 

9. RECENT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER, DEPUTY OR 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S)  
 

RESOLVED that the decision to allocate Grant Aid as set out in 
paragraph 4 of the report is noted. 

 
a) Portfolio Holder for Youth & Community - 29 March 2016 

 
10. PORTFOLIO HOLDER DELEGATIONS  

 
RESOLVED that the Leader’s Scheme of Delegation to Portfolio 
Holders for 2016/17, as set out in the document appended to these 
minutes, is noted. 

 
11. APPOINTMENT OF CABINET OVERVIEW WORKING GROUP, 

PANELS AND PARTNERSHIP BODIES 2016/17  
 
RESOLVED that appointments to Cabinet bodies for 2016/17 are 
made as detailed in the report submitted. 

 
12. CABINET OVERVIEW WORKING GROUP WORK PLAN 2016/17  

 
RESOLVED that the proposed 2016/17 work plan for the Overview 
Working Group as detailed at paragraph 2 from the report submitted 
is agreed. 

 
13. YEAR END 2015/16 JOINT PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE REPORT  

 
The Cabinet received a report that summarised the Council’s financial and 
operational performance as at year-end 2015/16 and proposed carryovers 
into 2016/17 and contributions to reserves. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Jon Clempner (seconded by Councillor Mike 
Danvers) it was: 
 

 
 

45



 
RESOLVED that Cabinet: 

 
A Acknowledges the outturn position set out in section three of 

Appendix A to this report for the year ending 31 March 2016 (1 April 
2015 – 31 March 2016), subject to recommendations in paragraphs 
20 and 22, as follows:  

 
i. An under-spend on controllable service budgets of £862,000 

or -1.25 per cent of the gross General Fund budget, after 
allowing for carry-forward requests. 

 
ii. A total reduction in the General Fund balance of £488,000 

after including the impact of windfall income, non-
controllable items, proposed transfers to reserves and 
budget carry forward requests (from 2014/15), 
representing an adverse variance of £221,000 to the 
revised budget (+0.32 per cent of the gross General Fund 
budget). 

 
B Recognises the operational performance that has been achieved 

across all Council services during 2015/16. 
 

C Approves: 
 

i. The carry forward of £136,800 of budgets from 2015/16 to 
2016/17 as set out in paragraph 20 of the report. 

 
ii. The transfer to reserves of £637,000 as set out in paragraph 

22 and Appendix C of the report. 
 

14. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT OUTTURN REPORT 2015/16  
 
The Cabinet received a report that summarised the year-end 2015/16 
position of the Housing Revenue Account and proposed some carryovers 
into 2016/17. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) 
it was: 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet: 
 

A Acknowledges the HRA outturn for 2015/16 as set out in the report 
as follows: 

 
(i) a favourable variation against the original budget adjusted for 

carryovers on operational/controllable budgets of 
£2,305,000 representing 3.98% of the gross Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) budget 

46



 
(ii) A total projected underspend of £8,154,000 representing 

14.06% of the gross HRA budget. 
 

B Notes the balances at 31 March 2016, of £12,298,000 in respect of 
the Housing Revenue Account and nil in respect of the Major 
Repairs Reserve (as identified in Appendix C). 

 
C Approves carryovers of £315,000 as detailed in paragraph 32 of this 

report to meet commitments from 2015/16. 
 

D Recognises the operational performance that has been achieved 
across all Council services during 2015/16. 

 
15. CAPITAL PROGRAMME OUTTURN REPORT 2015/16  

 
The Cabinet received a report that summarised the year-end 2015/16 
position of the Housing and Non Housing Capital Programmes and 
proposed some carryovers into 2016/17. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) 
it was: 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet: 
 
A Notes the outturn of the Council’s Housing and Non-Housing Capital 

Programmes as at 31 March 2016 detailed as follows: 
 

(i) Housing Capital Programme expenditure of £21,452,000 
against an approved revised budget of £25,103,000. 
 

(ii) Non-Housing Capital Programme expenditure of £3,950,000 
against an approved revised budget of £6,961,000. 

 
(iii) Additional capital expenditure of £1,655,000 in respect of 

Growth Area Funding/Programme of Development and 
£5,730,000 in respect of a land purchase for the Enterprise 
Zone. 

 
B Approves the carryover of Housing Capital Programme schemes to 

2016/17 of £3,823,800 to meet capital commitments. 
 
C Approves the carryover of Non-Housing Capital Programme schemes 

from 2015/16 of £2,761,830 to meet capital commitments. The 
carryover includes grant funding to support these commitments of 
£1,103,000 and a capital receipt of £600,000. 

 
D Approves business cases for the refurbishment of the Town Park cycle 

track bridge surface (£8,500), and emergency works to the Town Park 

47



Playground (£20,000), to replace play equipment and furnishings. This 
latter work will be carried out in early 2016/17. Both schemes will be 
funded from the risk reserve. 

 
E Recognises the operational performance that has been achieved 

across all Council services during 2015/16. 
 

16. CUSTOMER SERVICES ACTION PLAN  
 
The Cabinet received a report that detailed the recent Customer Service 
Review and associated Action Plan which outlined how the Council will 
develop customer interaction up to March 2019. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Jon Clempner (seconded by Councillor Mike 
Danvers) 
it was: 
 

RESOLVED that the Customer Service Action Plan at Appendix A 
is approved. 

 
17. SELECTION OF OPERATOR FOR HARLOW ENTERPRISE HUB  

 
The Cabinet received a report that proposed the continued support and 
operation of the Harlow Enterprise Hub and associated business support 
services and activities. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Tony Durcan (seconded by Councillor Mike 
Danvers) it was: 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
A The tender submitted by Contractor B is accepted subject to contract. 
 
B The Council enters into a management contract with co-terminus lease 

for a period of 9 years and 6 months, to be reviewed in Year 4 with a 
break clause for both parties at Year 5. 

 
18. THE STOW NEIGHBOURHOOD CENTRE DESIGN FRAMEWORK 

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT  
 
Cabinet received a report that proposed that The Stow Neighbourhood 
Centre Design Framework Supplementary Planning Document be 
adopted. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Tony Durcan (seconded by Councillor Danny 
Purton) it was: 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet RECOMMENDS to Council that The 
Stow Neighbourhood Centre Design Framework Supplementary 
Planning Document be adopted. 

48



 
19. LOAN ARRANGEMENTS FOR HTS (PROPERTY & ENVIRONMENT) 

LIMITED  
 
The Cabinet received a report which proposed the provision of a loan to 
finance the company set up costs which will ensure that HTS (Property & 
Environment) Ltd is able to initiate trading from 1 February 2017.  
 
Proposed by Councillor Jon Clempner (seconded by Councillor Mike 
Danvers) it was: 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
A Cabinet approves the provision of a loan of up to £1.4m to HTS 

(Property & Environment) Ltd as working capital for the business. 
 
B Authority is delegated to the Chief Executive, in consultation with 

the Leader of the Council and the Portfolio Holder for Resources, to 
finalise the detailed negotiation of the facilities agreement between 
the Council and HTS (Property & Environment) Ltd. 

 
20. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COMMITTEES/WORKING 

GROUPS/PARTIES AND PANELS 
 

a) Referral from Audit & Standards Committee - Annual Governance 
Statement 2015-16 
 
The Cabinet received a report from the Audit and Standards Committee 
that proposed the Annual Governance Statement for 2015-16. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) Cabinet: 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet approves the Annual Governance 
Statement for 2015-16. 

 
21. MINUTES OF PANELS/WORKING GROUPS  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meetings are noted. 

 
a) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 17 February 2016 of Shareholder Sub 

Committee for HTS (Property and Environment) Limited 
 

b) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 10 March 2016 of Cabinet Overview 
Working Group 
 

c) Minutes of meeting Tuesday 22 March 2016 of Housing Standards Board 
 

d) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 6 April 2016 of Harlow Local Highways 
Panel 

49



 
e) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 31 May 2016 of Shareholder Sub Committee 

for HTS (Property and Environment) Limited 
 

f) Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 29 June 2016 of Harlow Local Highways 
Panel 
 

22. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
The Leader of the Council stated his intention to ask the Chair of the 
Council to call a Special Council meeting to be held on Wednesday 31 
August 2016 specifically to discuss spatial options in regard to the Local 
Plan and issues arising around the proposed Junction 7a.   
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 

50



CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDERS’ DELEGATIONS 2016/17 
 
The Leader of the Council has the power to amend this scheme at any time.  
 
Any member of the Cabinet may refer any matter delegated to him or her to the Cabinet 
for a collective decision.  
 
1. All Portfolio Holders may:  
 

 Take urgent decisions that cannot reasonably be deferred until the next meeting of 
the Cabinet on any matter within the powers delegated to Cabinet and their portfolio, 
after written (including e-mail) consultation with the Leader (or Deputy if they are not 
available.  

 Take any decision that may be necessary to implement a decision of the Cabinet.  

 Agree the grant of licences for the use of land within their portfolio.  

 Agree minor or consequential amendments to any Policy, Plan or Strategy within 
their portfolio.  

 Take decisions relating to procurement and contractual matters as set out in the 
Financial Regulations and Procurement Policy and Standing Orders relating to 
contracts.  

 Where appropriate, and working with the relevant officers, respond to national 
consultation specific to their Portfolio.  

 Allocate specific grants relevant to their Portfolio.  
 
2. The Leader (or Deputy Leader, in their absence) may:  
 

 In the absence of any Portfolio Holder or at their request (in writing) or where a 
prejudicial interest has been declared take decisions on any matter delegated to that 
portfolio holder.  

 Write off irrecoverable debts in line with Financial Regulations.  

 Take decisions to sell/purchase/lease or otherwise deal with land where this would 
not constitute a Key Decision.  

 
3. The Portfolio Holder for Resources may:  
 

 Approve write-offs of irrecoverable debts (including Council Tax, national non-
domestic rates, mortgage arrears and sundry debtor debts) to a value in line with 
Financial Regulations.  

 Agree grants applications within budget.  
 
4. The Portfolio Holder for Environment may:  
 

 Set the level of hackney carriage and private hire fees within agreed budgetary 
policy.  

 Set the table of hackney carriage fares.  

 Name and number streets and buildings.  
 

51



 
5. The Portfolio Holder for Housing may:  
 

 Dispose of void properties which would cost greater than £10,000 to refurbish except 
where these fall, in an agreed regeneration area.  

 Approve write-offs of irrecoverable housing rent debts to a value in line with Financial 
Regulations.  

 Approve the annual Report to Tenants.  

 Approve Housing Service Standards.  
 
Note:  
 
Portfolio Holder decisions must be supported by a written report from the relevant senior 
Officer(s). It is the Portfolio Holder’s responsibility to consult and to seek advice from the 
Chief Executive, Chief Operating Officer, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance Officer as 
appropriate before decisions are taken to ensure that they are intra vires. Portfolio 
Holders should also consult the relevant budget holding Head of Service before 
decisions are taken.  
  

52



 

MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 

 
6 September 2016 7.30  - 7.34 pm 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
Committee Members 
Councillor Bob Davis (Chairman) 
Councillor Simon Carter 
Councillor Joel Charles 
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop 
Councillor Stefan Mullard 
Councillor Lanie Shears 
Councillor Rod Truan 

 
Also Present 
  

 
Officers 
 Graham Branchett, Chief Operating Officer 
Janet Jackson, Corporate and Governance Support Team Leader 

 
 
11. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor David Carter. 
 

12. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

13. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2016 are 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman subject to the 
inclusion of Councillor Rod Truan under Councillor’s present.  

 
14. MATTERS ARISING  

 
None.  
 

15. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 
None. 
 

16. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  
 
None. 

53

Agenda Item 11c



 
17. RESPONSES OF THE CABINET TO REPORTS OF THE SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE  
 
None.  
 

18. SCOPING REPORT FOR REVIEW OF HTS (PROPERTY AND 
ENVIRONMENT) LTD  
 
RESOLVED that the scoping report is noted. 
 

19. WORK PLAN  
 
The Committee received a report summarising its work plan for 2016/17.  
 
Instead of an interim report on the Review of Community Engagement 
there will be a presentation from The Campaign Company who are 
working with the Council. They will also meet with the Task and Finish 
Group, however Councillor Souter is no longer part of the Committee and 
therefore Councillor Simon Carter was selected as the new member of the 
Group.  
 

RESOLVED that the work plan is noted. 
 
 

 
 

20. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
None. 
 

21. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

54



 

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 

 
7 September 2016 7.30  - 8.46 pm 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
Committee Members 
Councillor Karen Clempner (Chairman) 
Councillor Ian Beckett (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Jean Clark 
Councillor Mark Ingall 
Councillor Stefan Mullard 
Councillor Edna Stevens 
 

 
Officers 
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance 
John Dyson, Principal Finance Manager 
Sarah Marsh, Internal Audit Manager 
Lorraine Bull, Senior Internal Auditor 
Debbie Hanson, Director, Ernst & Young  
Lisa Purse, Corporate and Governance Support Officer 
 

 
APOLOGIES  
Councillor Simon Carter 
Councillor Eddie Johnson 
Councillor Russell Perrin 
 
 
 
14. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 
 

15. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 22 June 2016 
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
16. MATTERS ARISING  

 
Reference Minute Item 9 b, Internal Audit Activity Report – Sarah Marsh, 
Internal Audit Manager provided an update at Agenda Item 11 of this 
meeting. 
 

Public Document Pack

55

Agenda Item 11d



Reference Minute Item 10 – Risk Management Progress Report 2016/17 – 
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance advised that the local authority trading 
company HTS (Property and Environment) Ltd had not been included in 
the register because the Shareholder Sub Committee receives a regular 
report which would include this risk and that such risk would be unlikely to 
appear on the Risk Management report to the Audit and Standards 
Committee due to the scoring system used.  
 

17. WRITTEN QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  
 
None. 
 

18. NON CONTENTIOUS BUSINESS  
 

RESOLVED that no items are taken as non-contentious business. 
 

19. COMMITTEE WORK PLAN  
 
The Committee received its current work plan for the 2016/17 municipal 
year.  The unallocated items on the work plan were discussed and it was 
agreed that Corporate Risk 3 from the Corporate Risk Register had been 
previously been considered.  
 

RESOLVED that Corporate Risks 4 and 7 would be considered at 
the 23 November 2016 meeting of this Committee. 

 
20. AUDITED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2015/16  

 
The Committee received the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts presented as 
appendix 1 to the report and a verbal update from Ernst &Young (the 
Council’s external auditor) representatives on progress with the audit 
exercise. 
 

RESOLVED that the draft 2015/16 Statement of Accounts is noted 
and referred to the Cabinet on 15 September 2016 for approval. 

 
21. MANAGEMENT LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS 2015/16  

 
The Committee received the amended draft Letter of Representation 
regarding the audit of the 2015/16 financial statements. 
 

RESOLVED that the draft Management Letter of Representation, 
attached at Appendix 1 of the report, is agreed as amended and 
recommended to Cabinet on 15 September 2016 for formal 
acknowledgement. 

 
22. AUDIT RESULTS REPORT (ISA 260)  

 
The Committee received a report, the amended item supplied at the 
meeting (appended to these minutes) and the external auditor’s findings 

56



on their audit of the Council’s financial statements and arrangements to 
secure value for money in the use of its resources.   
 
The Committee considered whether there were any significant matters to 
be referred to the Cabinet for their consideration alongside the Statement 
of Accounts. 
 
The Committee congratulated the Head of Finance and his team for their 
hard work and efforts in compiling the Statement of Accounts. 
 

RESOLVED that 
 
(a) the report is noted and no matters are considered significant 
to refer to the Cabinet for consideration alongside the 
Statement of Accounts at its meeting on 15 September 2016; 
 
(b) the Value for Money assessment of the Council’s use of 
resources, as contained within the report from the Council’s 
appointed auditor, is noted; 
 
(c) the continued progress made in the preparation of the 
Statement of Accounts which, in preparation for the Government’s 
requirement for earlier production of local authority final accounts 
with effect from 2017/18, has facilitated both an earlier audit to be 
completed and an associated reduction in the requirement to make 
amendments to the draft accounts, is acknowledged. 

 
23. INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY REPORT  

 
The Committee received a report on the work undertaken by the Internal 
Audit Team service.  This included the Recommendation Tracker, which 
was used to monitor the implementation of recommendations arising from 
previous internal audits. 
 
The Committee expressed concerns regarding overdue audit reports and 
asked that the Head of Governance provide an explanation to the next 
meeting of this Committee should reports remain outstanding. 
 

RESOLVED that the contents of the report are noted. 
 

24. RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT  
 
The Committee received the Risk Management Report and reviewed the 
Corporate Risk Register.  
 

RESOLVED that the contents of the report and its appendix, 
acknowledging the positive progress the Council has made in 
recent years regarding risk management, is noted. 
 

 

57



25. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
None. 
 
 

26. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE 
 

58



59



 

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 

 
13 September 2016 7.30  - 7.50 pm 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
Committee Members 
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop (Chairman) 
Councillor Ian Beckett 
Councillor Nick Churchill 
Councillor Karen Clempner 
Councillor Lanie Shears 
Councillor Edna Stevens 
 

 
Officers 
Michael Pitt, Environment and Licensing Manager 
Dimple Roopchand, Assistant Solicitor 
Janet Jackson, Corporate Governance Support 

 
APOLOGIES  
Councillor John Strachan 
Councillor Bill Pryor 
 
 
 
9. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 

10. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 12 July 
2016 are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
11. MATTERS ARISING  

 
None. 
 

12. WRITTEN QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  
 
None. 
 

13. COMMITTEE WORK PLAN  
 
A paper copy of the proposed Committee Work Plan for the current 
municipal year was circulated at the meeting. 
 

60

Agenda Item 11e



RESOLVED that: 
 
(a)  the Work Plan is noted; 
 
(b) the Quarterly Reporting of NHS Statistical Data be removed 

from the Work Plan at the present time and can return at a 
later date if requested;  

 
(c) the Review of the Standard Conditions for Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Driver Licensing is removed from the Work 
Plan to be reintroduced at a later date;  

 
(d) a report on a Specific Condition that appeared to require 

clarification, under the heading “offences” among the 
Standard Conditions applicable to a Private Hire Driver 
licence, requiring drivers to report within 72 hours to the 
Licensing Team cautions, convictions or prosecutions 
pending be added to the Work Plan for the Committee 
Meeting of 22 November 2016.  

 
14. CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION (CSE) TRAINING: DELEGATE 

FEEDBACK  
 
The Committee received a report on CSE Training – Delegate Feedback.  
 
Harlow Council began delivery of Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) awareness 
training to licensed Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers on 14 June 2016 
followed by further sessions on 1 and 2 August 2016.  The training package was 
designed by ‘Safe and Sound’ with assistance from Essex Safeguarding Children 
Board and Council staff.  It currently received financial support from the Essex 
Police and Crime Commissioner. 

 
A total of 130 drivers had now attended the training.  Further training would be 
made available for drivers on 6 October, early November and mid-January.  It 
would also be offered to all Councillors and Legal Officers through the normal 
channels. 
 

The Committee noted and welcomed the generally positive responses 
from delegates to the training, particularly the high proportion of delegates 
who indicated that it had increased their awareness for the CSE issues. 
 

RESOLVED the Committee noted the feedback from delegates who 
attended the recent ‘child sexual exploitation’ training on 14 June 
and 1 and 2 August 2016. 

 
15. PREPARING A STATEMENT OF GAMBLING ACT POLICY FOR 

CONSULTATION: LOCAL AREA PROFILING  
 
The Committee received a report on Preparing a Statement of Gambling Act 
Policy for Consultation: Local Area Profiling.  

61



Officers explained that the Gambling Act 2005 requires that local licensing 
authorities publish a Statement of Licensing Policy.  The Statement must take 
account of guidance issued by the Gambling Commission. 
 
The recently published 5th Edition of Guidance to Licensing Authorities had 
introduced the concept of ‘local area profiles’.  A local area profile should enable 
the Council to map out areas of additional risk and the location of any specifically 
vulnerable groups.   
 

RESOLVED that the arrangements being made to identify any area-

based vulnerability to gambling harm, in preparation for consultation on 
revised Gambling Act Statement of Licensing Policy, is approved. 

 
16. FOOD SAFETY ACT 1990 SERVICE PLAN 2016/17  

 
The Committee received a report on the Food Safety Act 1990 Service 
Plan 2016/2017. 
 
The Council has a statutory duty to enforce the Food Safety Act and in 
doing so to have regard to the Framework Agreement on Local Authority 
Food Law Enforcement which constitutes statutory guidance issued by the 
Food Standards Agency (FSA).  The Service Plan is produced in 
compliance with the Framework Agreement and represents a Team Plan 
within the Council’s own Performance Management Framework.  
 

RESOLVED that the Food Service Plan presented at Appendix 1 of 
the report, be noted and approved. 

 
17. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  

 
None. 
 

18. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE 

62



 

MINUTES OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

HELD ON 

 

14 September 2016 7.30pm  - 9.15pm 
 

 

PRESENT 

 

Committee Members 
Councillor Phil Waite (Chairman) 
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Jean Clark 
Councillor Bob Davis 
Councillor Michael Garnett 
Councillor Shona Johnson 
Councillor Sue Livings 
Councillor Dan Long 
Councillor Edna Stevens 
 

 
Officers 

Sarah Bradford, Legal Services Officer 
Dianne Cooper, Planning and Building Control Manager 
Andrew Jarratt, Development Manager 
Lisa Thornett, Customer Services Officer 
 

 
APOLOGIES  
Councillor John Strachan 
 
 
 
 
20. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Councillor Edna Stevens declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 
7 (8 The Drive) as a Netteswell Ward Councillor) 
 
Councillors Mike Garnett and Sue Livings each declared a non-pecuniary 
interest in agenda items 8 (Harlow Cricket Club) and 9 (43 Chippingfield) 
as Old Harlow Ward Councillors. 
 
Councillor Bob Davis declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 10 
(285-290 Ladyshot) as a Mark Hall Ward Councillor. 
 
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda 
item 11 (86 Potter Street) as a Harlow Common Ward Councillor. 
 
 
 

63

Agenda Item 11f



21. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 6 July 2016 
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

 
22. MATTERS ARISING  

 
None. 
 

23. WRITTEN QUESTIONS  

 
None. 
 

24. PROCEDURE FOR CONSIDERATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS  

 
RESOLVED that the procedure for the consideration of planning 
applications is noted. 

 
25. HW/FUL/16/00291 - 8 THE DRIVE  

 
The Committee received a report and update sheet on the planning 
application for the demolition of an existing two-bedroomed bungalow and 
the construction of two, four-bedroomed semi-detached houses with 
integral garages and four car spaces.   
 
Presentations were received from two objectors to the application. 
 

RESOLVED that planning permission be REFUSED for the 
following reasons: 
 
The proposed development erection of two semi-detached 
dwellings would result in a dominant footprint and cramped form of 
development by being built close up to its boundaries, appearing at 
odds with the prevailing pattern of development and local character, 
which is one of properties placed centrally on their plots with 
significant separation from the boundaries.  Therefore, the 
proposed development would appear incongruous in the 
streetscene and would detract from the character and appearance 
of both the subject site and the wider surrounding area, contrary to 
Policies BE1 and H10 of the Adopted Replacement Harlow Local 
Plan 2006 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2012. 

 
26. HW/FUL/16/00249 - HARLOW CRICKET CLUB  

 
The Committee received a report on a retrospective planning application 
for the erection of cricket nets within the cricket ground, for the purpose of 
practicing cricket skills.   
 
Presentations were received from the applicant and an objector. 
 

64



The Committee suggested the application should be deferred to allow time 
for the applicant and the objector to negotiate a mutually acceptable way 
forward.    
 

RESOLVED that the application is DEFERRED to a future meeting 
pending the outcome of discussions between the applicant and the 
objector. 

 
27. HW/HSE/16/00292 - 43 CHIPPINGFIELD  

 
The Committee received a report and update sheet on the planning 
application for a two-storey side extension; front porch; repositioning of the 
front garden access gate and path; and internal changes. 
 
Presentations were received from three objectors. 
 

RESOLVED that planning permission be REFUSED for the 
following reasons: 
 
Chippingfield was constructed in 1949 as the first development in 
the creation of Harlow New Town.  The road therefore has historical 
importance within Harlow.  On viewing the internal layout there is 
concern that the intention is to subdivide the unit, however, this 
application is for the two-storey side extension and front porch and 
must be determined on its own merits.  The proposed porch would 
appear bulky and would conflict with the neighbouring light-weight 
canopy, therefore resulting in loss of symmetry to the pair of No. 41 
and No. 43, harming the character and appearance of the subject 
site and wider surrounding area contrary to Policy BE1 of the 
Adopted Replacement Harlow Local Plan 2006 and the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2012.  In addition, the proposed 
development would increase the occupancy of the dwelling and 
would place a greater pressure on parking.  The property currently 
does not benefit from off-street parking and no additional parking is 
provided.  The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy T9 of the 
Adopted Replacement Harlow Local Plan 2006 and the Parking 
Standards Design and Good Practice September 2009.  The need 
to be compliant with adopted parking standards is exacerbated by 
the existing provision of on-street disabled parking bays.  

 
28. HW/FUL/16/00274 - 285-290 LADYSHOT  

 
The Committee received a report on the planning application for the siting 
of a Welfare Unit and Storage Kabins to support the delivery of the 
2016/17 Modern Homes Residential Improvements for Harlow Council.  
 
A presentation was received from an objector. 
 

RESOLVED that planning permission be GRANTED subject to the 
Conditions and Informative Clauses as detailed in the report. 

65



 
29. HW/FUL/16/00266 - 86 POTTER STREET  

 
The Committee received a planning application for a dropped kerb and 
vehicular access. 
 
Presentations were received from the applicant and an objector. 
 

RESOLVED that planning permission be GRANTED subject to the 
Conditions and Informative Clauses as detailed in the report. 

 
30. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  

 
None. 
 

31. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE 

 

66



 

MINUTES OF THE CABINET 

HELD ON 

 

15 September 2016 7.30  - 8.49 pm 
 

PRESENT 

 

Cabinet Members 
Councillor Jon Clempner, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Emma Toal, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Youth & 
Community 
Councillor Mike Danvers, Portfolio Holder for Resources 
Councillor Tony Durcan, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration & Enterprise 
Councillor Waida Forman, Portfolio Holder for Governance 
Councillor Danny Purton, Portfolio Holder for Environment 
 
Additional Attendees 

Councillor Mark Ingall 
Councillor Lanie Shears 

 
Other Councillors Officers 

Councillor Simon Carter 
Councillor Joel Charles 
Councillor Tony Hall 
Councillor Andrew Johnson 
Councillor Eddie Johnson 
Councillor Clive Souter 
  

Graeme Bloomer, Head of Place 
Graham Branchett, Chief Operating 
Officer 
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance 
Jane Greer, Head of Community 
Wellbeing 
Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 
Lisa Purse, Corporate and 
Governance Support Officer 
Brian Keane, Head of Governance 
 

 
23. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies were received from Councillors John Strachan and Mark 
Wilkinson. 
 

24. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 

25. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2016 are 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Leader. 

 
26. MATTERS ARISING  

 
None. 

67

Agenda Item 11g



 
27. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 
None. 
 

28. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  
 
None. 
 

29. PETITIONS  
 
None. 
 

30. FORWARD PLAN  
 

RESOLVED that the Forward Plan is noted. 
 

31. RECENT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER, DEPUTY OR 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S)  
 
None. 
 

32. JOINT FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORT, QUARTER 1 2016/17  
 
The Cabinet received a report that reviewed performance against the 
Council’s approved General Fund Budget and Corporate Plan for Quarter 
One 2016/17. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) it was: 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet: 
 
 Acknowledges the projected outturn position set out in 

sections three and four of Appendix A to the report for the 
first quarter (April – June) of 2016/17 as follows: 

 
(i) A favourable variation on controllable budgets of £53,000, 
representing 0.085 per cent of the gross General Fund 
Budget.  
 
(ii) A total projected underspend of £278,000 representing -
0.45 per cent of the gross General Fund Budget.  
 
(iii) The Council performed on target or above target for 42 
out of 47 (89 per cent) of performance indicators.  

 
33. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT, QUARTER 1 FINANCE REPORT 

2016/17  
 

68



The Cabinet received a report that reviewed the Council’s performance 
against its approved Housing Revenue Account for Quarter One 2016/17. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) Cabinet: 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet: 
 
A Acknowledges:  
 

(i) A favourable variation against the approved HRA 
operational/controllable budget of £150,000 representing 
0.29% of the gross Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
budget.  
 
(ii) A total projected overspend of £3,215,000 representing 
6.14% of the gross HRA budget. The variation is directly 
associated with adjustments to capital programme financing 
as a result of the agreed outturn from 2015/16 (paragraph 3). 
 

B The forecast balances at 31 March 2017, of £6,800,000 in 
respect of the Housing Revenue Account and nil in respect 
of the Major Repairs Reserve (as identified in Appendix C) 
are noted. 

 
34. CAPITAL PROGRAMMES QUARTER 1 FINANCE REPORT 2016/17  

 
The Cabinet received a report that reviewed the Council’s performance 
against its approved Housing and Non-Housing Capital Programmes for 
Quarter One 2016/17 and proposed a number of additional business 
cases for the Non-Housing Capital Programme. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) it was: 

 
RESOLVED that Cabinet: 
 
A Acknowledges the progress made in the delivery of the 

Council’s Housing and Non-Housing Capital Programmes for 
the first quarter of 2016/17 as follows:  
 
(i) Housing Capital Programme – a forecast outturn of 
£23,734,000 which is £1.0 million less than the agreed 
2016/17 programme.  
 
(ii) Non-Housing Capital Programme – a forecast outturn of 
£7,019,000 which is £134,000 below the approved 
programme for 2016/17.  

 

69



B Approves the revision to the Housing Capital Programme 
and the movement of £1.0 million of External works 
programme to 2017/18 as set out in Paragraphs 4 and 5. 

 
C Approves  

 
(i) A business case for the development of offices at Latton 
Bush Centre by the current tenants, reference Annex 13, re-
aligning £33,000 of funding already earmarked for the 
Centre.  

 
(ii) A revised contribution of £86,000 (being an increase of 
£16,000) for the work at Fernhill Travellers Site, reference 
paragraph 13 and Annex 14. 

 
35. ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2015/16  

 
The Cabinet received a report on the Council’s treasury management 
functions in 2015/16. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) Cabinet: 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
A  Cabinet notes the annual Treasury Management Report for 

2015/16 (Appendix A), including that the Council operated 
within the Treasury Management Strategy Statement during 
2015/16, and that the report is recommended to Full Council 
for approval. 

 
B Cabinet notes the issues that the outcome of the EU 

Referendum is creating and their impact on the Council’s 
treasury management activities. 

 
36. DEBT WRITE OFFS  

 
The Cabinet received a report which detailed a number of debts which 
were deemed to be irrecoverable and therefore proposed for write-off. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) Cabinet: 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
A Irrecoverable non domestic rates amounting to £184,102.06 

be written off. 
 
B Irrecoverable sundry debts amounting to £42,048.93 be 

written off. 

70



 
37. NICHOLLS FIELD PAVILION REFURBISHMENT WORKS  

 
Cabinet received a report recommending that a tender is accepted to 
enable the Council to enter into a contract for works in compliance with 
Contracts Standing Orders. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Tony Durcan (seconded by Councillor Emma Toal) 
Cabinet: 
 

RESOLVED that : 
 
A The most advantageous tender assessed against the criteria 

included in the tender documents submitted by Contractor B 
is accepted in the sum of £709,385.00 “subject to contract”. 

 
38. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR SMALL ROOFING SCHEMES  

 
Cabinet received a report recommending that a tender is accepted to 
enable the Council to enter into a contract for works in compliance with 
Contracts Standing Orders. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Tony Durcan (seconded by Councillor Emma Toal) 
Cabinet: 
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
A The most economically advantageous tender assessed 

against the criteria included in the tender documents 
submitted by Contractor A is accepted in the sum of 
£250,474 “subject to contract”. 

 
39. STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING POLICY REVIEW  

 
Cabinet received an updated policy document that included guidance for 
naming streets and numbering properties.  
 
Proposed by Councillor Danny Purton (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) Cabinet: 

 
RESOLVED that: 
 
A  The Street Naming and Numbering Policy attached as 

Appendix 1 to the report submitted is approved. 
 
B  The revised Street Naming and Numbering schedule of fees 

as set out in Appendix B of Appendix 1of the report 
submitted is approved. 

 

71



40. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COMMITTEES/WORKING 
GROUPS/PARTIES AND PANELS 
 

a) Referral from Audit & Standards Committee - 2015/16 Audited Annual 
Accounts 
 
The Cabinet received a report from the Audit & Standards Committee 
recommending that the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts is approved. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) Cabinet: 
 

RESOLVED that the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts is approved. 
 

b) Referral from Audit & Standards Committee - Management Letter of 
Representation 2015/16 
 
The Cabinet received a report from the Audit & Standards Committee 
recommending that the Management Letter of Representation 2015/16 is 
acknowledged. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) Cabinet: 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet acknowledge the Management Letter of 
Representation 2015/16. 

 
41. MINUTES OF PANELS/WORKING GROUPS  

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meetings are noted. 

 
a) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 7 July 2016 of Shareholder Sub Committee 

 
b) Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 12 July 2016 of Housing Standards Board 

 
c) Minutes of meeting Thursday, 21 July 2016 of Safety Committee 

 
42. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 
 

43. RAINBOW SERVICES PENSIONS  
 
The Cabinet received a confidential report regarding Rainbow Services 
pension arrangements. 
 
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Jon 
Clempner) it was: 

 

72



RESOLVED that the recommendation contained within the report is 
approved. 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 

73


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes 31 August 2016 Council

	9a Referral from Cabinet - Annual Treasury Management Report 2015/16
	Appenix A Annual Treasury Outturn Report 2015-16

	11a Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 19 July 2016 of Scrutiny Committee
	11b Minutes of meeting Thursday, 21 July 2016 of Cabinet
	Minutes
	10 Portfolio Holder Delegations

	11c Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 6 September 2016 of Scrutiny Committee
	11d Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 7 September 2016 of Audit & Standards Committee
	Minutes
	22 Audit Results Report (ISA 260)

	11e Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 13 September 2016 of Licensing Committee
	11f Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 14 September 2016 of Development Management Committee
	11g Minutes of meeting Thursday, 15 September 2016 of Cabinet

